KWAME NKRUMAH UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY, KUMASI

COLLEGE OF HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES

KNUST SCHOOL OF BUSINESS

KNUST

THE INFLUENCE OF INVENTORY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE ON FIRMS'

COMPETITIVENESS AND ORGANIZATIONAL PERFORMANCE.

BY

IDDISAH ABDULAI EWUNTOMAH

(PG 9266821)

(MSc. Logistics and Supply Chain Management)

A THESIS SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF SUPPLY CHAIN AND INFORMATION SYSTEMS IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER OF SCIENCE

(LOGISTICS AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT)

NO

WJSANE

NOVEMBER, 2023

DECLARATION

'I hereby declare that this submission is my own work towards the **Master Of Science Logistics And Supply Chain Management** degree and that, to the best of my knowledge, it contains no material previously published by another researcher which has been accepted for the award of any other degree of the University except where due acknowledgement has been made in the text'.

-

	M	
Iddisah Abdulai Ewuntomah	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
(PG 9266821)	Signature	Date
Certified by	R.F.	H
Dr. Emmanuel K. Anin		
(Supervisor)	Signature	Date
E	33	I
Certify by	5	BADWY
Prof. David Asamoah		<u></u>
(Head of Department)	Signature	Date

DEDICATION

I dedicated this thesis to my wife, Madam Yakubu Salima, my children and my principal.



ACKNOWLEGEMENT

All thanks and praises go to the Almighty God for making this work a success. I wish to express my heartfelt gratitude to my supervisor, Dr. Emmanuel Anim, for his immense contribution and guidance in the success of this work. Also, my gratitude to Mr. Richard Wiredu for his contribution in the thesis write-up and all those who in diverse ways contributed to the completion of this study. Finally, I thank colleagues and staff of KNUST IDL Tamale center for their support.



ABSTRACT

The goal of the study is to determine how inventory management practices affect organizations' ability to compete and their ability to perform as an organization. SMEs in Tamale Metropolis, which has roughly 386 registered SMEs, are included in the study population. Due to the size of the population, some SMEs are being sampled using the Slovin formula. A sample random sample method was used to analyse the population by obtaining data and examining it. The main instrument for gathering data for the study is a formal questionnaire. It makes use of a closed-ended questionnaire. In SPSS, the Cronbach's alpha is used to assess the reliability of the research instrument. The study employed factor analysis. The survey found that the SMEs used vendor-managed inventory, economic order quantity, just-in-Time, A-B-C Models, and demand forecasting as their inventory management techniques. It was also shown that inventory management procedures had a favourable and considerable impact on the organizations' competitiveness. The study concludes that SMEs use inventory management techniques in their business operations, which has improved their competitive advantage and improved organizational performance. The findings of this study generally show that enhanced levels of inventory management practice may have been a result of stronger organizational performance and competitive advantage. It is recommended that manufacturing firms in developing nations like Ghana keep inventory management in mind while creating W J SANE NO BADW comprehensive and strategic business plans.

iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONTENTS DECLARATION	i
DEDICATION	ii
ACKNOWLEGEMENT	iii
ABSTRACT	iv
TABLE OF CONTENTS	V
LIST OF TABLES	viii
LIST OF FIGURES	ix

CHAPTER ONE	
INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background of the Study	1
1.2 Problem Statement	
1.3 Objective of the study	
1.4 Research Questions	6
1.5 Significance of the Study	6
1.6 Scope of the Study	
1.7 Overview of Methodology	
1.8 Organisation to the Study	
The second second	NOX N

2.4 Empirical Review	23
2.4.1 Inventory Management Practices	23
2.4.2 Influence of inventory management practice on Firms' Competitiveness	25
2.4.3 Inventory Management Practice and Organizational Performance	27
2.5 Conceptual Framework	30
2.6 Hypothesis Formulation	31
ZNIICT	

CHAPTER THREE	
METHODOLOGY	
3.0 Introduction	
3.1 Research Design	
3.2 Population Size	
3.3 Sample Size	
3.4 Sampling Technique	
3.5 Source of Data	
3.6 Variable Description and Measurement	
3.7 Model Specification	
3.8 Robustness Test	<mark></mark>
3.8 Data Analysis	
CELC P/3	43

CHAPTER FOUR	
RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	
4.0 Introduction	
4.1 Demographic Information	
4.1.1 Firms Characteristics	
4.1.2 Respondent Characteristics	41
4.2 Validity and Reliability	
4.2.1 Reliability Test	
4.2.2 Exploratory Factor Analysis	43
4.3 Correlations Matrix	48
4.4 Regression Analysis	49
4.5 Discussion of the Results	50

CHAPTER FIVE	55
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, CONCLUSION, AND RECOMMEN	NDATIONS55
5.0 Introduction	55

5.1 Summary of Findings	55
5.1.1 Inventory Management Practices	55
5.1.2 Inventory Management Practices and Firms' Competitiveness	55
5.1.3 Inventory Management Practices and Organizational Performance	56
5.2 Conclusion	56
5.3 Recommendations	57
5.4 Limitations and Recommendations for Future Research	58
KINUSI	

REFERENCES			 	 60
APPENDIX A:	QUESTIONNA	AIRES	 	 66



LIST OF TABLES

Table 3.2: Variable Description and Measurement	.36
Table 4.1: Demographic Information	.40
Table 4.2 Reliability Test	42
Table 4.3: KMO and Bartlett's Test	.43
Table 4.4: Communalities and Descriptive Statistics	45
Table 4.5: Correlations Matrix	.48
Table 4.5: Multiple Regression Analysis	49



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.1: Conceptual Framework	
----------------------------------	--



CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background of the Study

Tracking inventory from purchase to sale, inventory management helps businesses determine what and how much product to order at any one time. Recognizing and responding to patterns, the method ensures there is always enough stock to meet customer orders and gives advance notice of a potential shortage. Inventory management affects every part of a business, from storage costs to order fulfilment times and precision. Raw materials to finished products, everything in a business needs to be handled. Unfortunately, it is a difficult business operation to manage stocks manually. According to Bidgoli (2010), "inventory management" is a catchall term for your method of tracking throughout the product's life cycle. Sales forecasting, product ordering, supply chain management, and customer satisfaction could also be included.

The effectiveness with which a company maintains its inventory is one of several elements that contribute to its success. Numerous elements at the national, corporate, and industrial levels are also important. Ismail (2016) found that despite being one of the most undervalued facets of management, small businesses spend a disproportionate amount of money on inventories. Because of ineffective inventory management or a lack of staff to adequately monitor the stock, many smaller businesses have too much cash stashed away in their inventories. According to Atnafu and Balda (2017), poor inventory management immediately affects a company's ability to manage its cash flow. The researcher believes that neither

academics nor policymakers in Ghana have expressed significant interest in the characteristics of small and medium-sized firms connected to inventory (SMEs).

The economy is significantly impacted by small and medium-sized businesses (SMEs), notably those in the industrial sector. Therefore, SMEs' competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency would be extremely important to any emerging country's economy. According to the literature, formal inventory management systems can be implemented as a strategy to increase competitiveness. Inventory control may be used to stop the company from suffering avoidable losses as a result of the actions of several departments. One example of such a measure is stock-taking, the monthly accounting of stock to record the lost and available stock, as well as having enough site supervision when constructing a building to prevent worker material theft. By giving the company's procurement executives and store managers detailed instructions on how to buy and stock products, inventory loss can be prevented (Amahalu et al., 2018).

Inventory management is necessary at various stages inside an organization or along a supply chain to avoid either running out of supplies or products or retaining too much inventory, which would result in increased costs. Manufacturing firms that have sufficient stockpiles can streamline their production processes (Abd Karim et al., 2018). Having an effective inventory management system in place helps boost a business's productivity. The success of enterprises can be improved by cutting expenses and raising revenues (Agustia et al., 2020). Effective inventory management practice techniques can help with this. Now that most businesses compete in globally competitive industries and sectors, efficient inventory management is essential to success. However, management has treated inventory as a nuisance rather than an asset that needs attention, ignoring the resulting savings opportunities.

1.2 Problem Statement

The ability to manage inventory flow efficiently and effectively across the value chain is crucial to the success of organizations of all sizes. Managing inventories can be challenging since it requires keeping supply and demand in equilibrium. In a perfect world, a company would have plenty of stock to fulfill orders and prevent sales from dropping because of shortages. However, the company would rather not retain too much stock on hand due to the high cost of doing so. The supply chain management of a company is very susceptible to and impacted by inventory decisions. According to Atnafu and Balda (2017), inventory management processes have finally been recognized as a crucial issue deserving of top priority. Most manufacturing companies invest up to half of their total product cost in direct materials like inventory, which can have a negative effect on their bottom line and capacity to compete.

But traditionally, businesses have ignored the savings opportunities presented by effective inventory management, treating stock as more of a burden than an advantage (Ajayi et al., 2021). Because of this, several IM systems resort to using rules of thumb. Craighead et al. (2020) state that proper inventory management is essential to the success of any company. Small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), particularly those in the industrial sector, have significant effects on the economy. The small and medium-sized enterprise sector is the second largest employment in Ghana, behind only agriculture (Forson et al., 2022). However, these organizations face challenges in monetary and other areas as well. Many small businesses fail for reasons other than cash flow, claim Portes and Guarnizo (2019).

Furthermore, insufficient record-keeping and a lack of core business management knowledge and competencies were identified as two main causes of small business failure in a study conducted by Bushe (2019).

Micro and small-scale manufacturers often worry about not having enough supplies of raw materials and spare components on hand. Due to frequent production schedule disruptions, equipment breakdowns, and low capacity utilisation, these shortages acted as a barrier to their efficient expansion. Flour factories need to use scientific models of inventory management to deal with situations like material shortages, product stockouts, component accumulation, and the associated fines. While some studies have found a positive correlation between effective inventory management and improved organizational performance, other studies have found no such correlation.

The results of Atnafu and Balda suggest that higher levels of inventory management practice, for example, may result in an improved competitive advantage and increased organizational performance (2018). Furthermore, according to Karada's (2018) research, a favorable correlation exists between a company's financial success and its viability. The empirical results of Nyabwanga and Ojera (2012) demonstrated a positive significant correlation between efficient inventory management practices and business success at the 0.05 level of significance.. Significant gaps were also found between efficient inventory management and optimum operational performance, according to research by John et al. (2015). Some businesses have better material resource utilization because they use best practice inventory management systems, such as those that boost service levels and decrease lead times. The Shippers Council of Eastern Africa (SCEA) released a report in 2016 showing that Africa's inventory performance lags below that of other continents. To be more specific, the report found that Africa is performing poorly in inventory management techniques, with Rwanda (a score of 2.04), Namibia (a score of 2.02), Sierra Leone (a score of 1.97), Eritrea (a score of 1.70), and Somalia (a score of 1.34). One may argue that poor inventory performance continues to have a chilling impact on the industrial sectors' overall performance and their overall contributions to economic advances across Africa.

There has been a significant decline in the significance of the manufacturing sector to emerging economies during the previous quarter century, according to a study published in 2016 by the United Nations Industrial Development Organisation (UNIDO). For instance, the industry's contribution to GDP and job creation in the expanding economy of Ghana has been steadily declining over time, from 8.2% to 5.5%. This portends the doom of the industry [2]. The sector's share of Ghana's GDP fell from 9.1% in 2007 to 4.5% in 2017, according to a 2018 estimate by the Ghana Statistical Service. Inadequate inventory management practices could keep the industry operating at a subpar level.

Despite the research into this issue, the role of inventory management on a company's competitiveness and performance remains unclear. In the case of Ghana, a developing country, not much has been done either. The Ghana Statistical Service (2018) reports that the percentage of GDP contributed by small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) fell from 9.1% in 2007 to 4.5% in 2017. In light of this, the research analyzed the inventory management practices and operational effectiveness of Ghanaian factories. The research also evaluated the most popular and effective methods of inventory management among Ghanaian manufacturers. It also looked into how various inventory management strategies affected the operational efficiency and competitiveness of manufacturing businesses.

1.3 Objective of the study

The study is to examine the relationship between the influence of inventory management practice on firms' competitiveness and organizational performance.

- To examine the inventory management practices followed by SMEs in Manufacturing Sub-Sector.
- 2. To examine the influence of inventory management practice on firms' competitiveness among Manufacturing Sub-Sector.
- 3. To examine the influence of inventory management practice on organizational performance among Manufacturing Sub-Sector.

1.4 Research Questions

The study sought to answer the following question

- 1. What are the Inventory Management practices followed by MSEs in Manufacturing Sub-Sector?
 - 2. What is the influence of inventory management practice on firms' competitiveness among Manufacturing Sub-Sector?
 - 3. What is the influence of inventory management practice on organizational performance among Manufacturing Sub-Sector?

1.5 Significance of the Study

The study's findings should have broad implications for academic research on inventory management and its effect on manufacturing companies' bottom lines. The study will provide the policymaker with the foundational knowledge inventory control personnel need to design user-friendly policies and processes for stocking and monitoring inventory. The findings will influence the decision-making of individuals in industry tasked with developing strategies for addressing inventory issues, which should help ensure consistent performance in inventory management.

It is intended that the study's results would help pinpoint opportunities to cut costs without sacrificing productivity. Finally, it is intended that the study results would serve as a foundation for future research in the field of inventory.

1.6 Scope of the Study

The scope of the study is structured into context and geography. Geographically, the study would be limited to SMEs in Tamale, Ghana. Contextually, the study would be limited to determining the effect of inventory management practices on firms' competitiveness and organizational performance.

1.7 Overview of Methodology

With this design, the study will gather quantifiable data for statistical analysis of the population sample. The study will use a descriptive research design, more precisely, a quantitative descriptive research design. SMEs are among the population in Tamale Metropolitan. To represent each SME, the owners and management will be chosen. To study the population by gathering information and analyzing that data, simple random sampling technique was employed. The sample will be determined using the Slovin formula. The data will be sourced from primary sources using questionnaires.

1.8 Organisation to the Study

For the sake of clarity, this project will be broken down into five (5) distinct sections. In the first chapter, you'll learn about the research's background, the problem, the study's aims, the researchers' main concerns, the methodology, the study's significance, and its limits. In chapter two, we'll break down the relevant material into manageable chunks. Methodology, including study, population, and sample testing design, and instruments used for data collecting and analysis, will be discussed in Chapter 3. Chapter 4 focuses on the presentation and discussion of the research findings. Tables and figures are used to present and explain the results of the questionnaire analysis and the table. Finally, the study's conclusions, recommendations, and proposals will be discussed in Chapter 5.



CHAPTER TWO

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Introduction

This chapter examines pertinent conceptual, theoretical, and empirical works in order to create a link between the research challenge and current scholarly thought. The conceptual literature explains the basic concepts that form the basis of the investigation. The theoretical examination also covers theoretical stances on how inventory management practice affects businesses' competitiveness and overall organizational effectiveness. In the end, the empirical literature reports the findings of earlier study.

2.2 Conceptual Review

2.2.1 Inventory Management Practice

Businesses can benefit from inventory management by understanding when and how much stock to order, according to Muchaendepi et al. (2019). Stock levels are monitored from arrival to departure. The process recognizes patterns and makes adjustments as necessary to ensure sufficient supply to meet demand and early notification of imminent shortages.

Most inventory management software is built on common inventory ideas, designs, and practices. These techniques are still useful today, theoretically speaking. Muchaendepi et al. (2019) discovered that using inventory procedures and concepts had an impact on organizations' bottom lines despite their shortcomings. According to Muchaendepi et al. (2019), ABC analysis divides stock into three groups based on annual cost volume. Three categories—those with the highest priority (A-class), those with moderate importance (B-class), and those with the lowest priority—are used by ABC analysis to categorize manufacturing facilities (C-class). Gallino et al. (2017) find that 'A' items account for 70 percent to 80 percent of total value consumption even if they only make up 15 percent of stock. 'C' items account for less than 5% of annual cost value but at least 15% of annual value retained in inventory, whereas 'A' products account for less than 15% of annual cost value but 25% or more of annual value consumed, and 'B' items account for at least 55% of total inventory. According to Stojanovi and Regodi (2017), "A" items denote a high usage rate and demand an accurate inventory record, whereas "C" items are utilized less frequently. These classifications were allegedly developed to help decide how much control should be exerted over various facets of daily life. ABC analysis is thought to be the best suitable for long-term judgments because the classification is only based on annual rate use. This is particularly pertinent to small and medium-sized firms (SMEs), as the principles will aid the management team in decisions regarding the method used for inventory storage, regardless of the size of the company.

Small and medium-sized businesses (SMEs) have adopted ABC analysis more slowly than bigger businesses have (Atnafu & Balda, 2018). According to Gallino et al. (2017), the Economic Order Quantity (EOQ) model is the most fundamental and basic one that has been developed over time for particular commodities. Reduced ordering and storage costs are achieved by determining the EOQ for each inventory item (Riza et al., 2018). The advantage of this model is that it offers precise forecasts for a large range of parameter values (Gallino et al., 2017). According to Sebatjane and Adetunji (2019), EOQ is based on the following presumptions: orders are filled all at once; on average, half of the inventory is available at any one moment; and ordering cost, holding cost, and acquisition cost per unit remain constant. The point at which two prices are equal is known as the Economic Order Quantity (EOQ). The ideal order size is related to the highest holding and ordering costs.

2.2.1.1 Role of Inventory

According to Tao et al. (2018), the inventory acts as a buffer between production and sales, ensuring a steady flow of items and satisfying client demand. To reach this objective, businesses need to keep tight control over inventory levels, which may require investing in new software. Organizations rely on inventory management to keep them stocked with the materials they require at the lowest possible cost (Oluwaseyi et al., 2017). It could determine whether or not your business turns a profit. For this reason, it is essential for your company's performance to have accurate financial data regarding your inventory (Tao et al., 2018).

Inventory management helps businesses by determining how much of each product to order when and when to order it. An inventory management system keeps track of the movement of products from purchase to sale. The approach analyzes trends and makes adjustments in response to them to guarantee that there is always adequate inventory to fulfill client orders and that customers are promptly notified if there is a shortage. The inventory is all about having a constant supply of products (Oluwaseyi et al., 2017). To fulfill this responsibility effectively, a business should try to find the balance between having too much stock on hand and too enough. This equilibrium is beneficial since it boosts a company's cash flow and profits and ensures that operations can continue uninterrupted.

The goal of an inventory, as stated by Oluwaseyi et al. (2017), is to ensure that you never collect more resources than you can use and that you always have access to the resources you require. Keep only as much cash on hand as your business may realistically expect to turn through in a specific time period. There are averages across

industries that can be used as guidelines for inventory turnover rates. While meeting averages is important, the success of your business will depend more on keeping adequate stock levels while minimizing clutter.

If you buy and hold too much inventory, you may find that your cash flow is hampered since you have to put money into things that may never sell, such rent and wages.

2.2.1.2 Types of Inventory

According to Willems et al. (2017), inventory can be classified into three types which include;

Raw Material Inventory: All products that the business purchases for processing are included in this. For instance, a confectionary company's raw materials inventory includes flour, yeast, eggs, and other ingredients.

Work-In-Progress Inventory: The plant needs to complete this level of raw material inventory before moving on to the next stage of processing. These are materials that have only partially undergone processing.

Finished Goods Inventory: This is the finished goods inventory. The level of finished goods stock depends on coordination between the organization's production and sales departments. These may be goods in the warehouse or in stock of goods awaiting shipping.

2.2.1.3 Inventory Management Process

It is crucial to make sure you have the fundamental processes covered before you can optimise your inventory management process. According to Choi et al. (2018), the five necessary steps for any inventory management process are outlined below: The first step in the inventory management process is to receive and inspect the products ordered from the supplier (Choi et al., 2018). It is crucial to get this part perfect so that the subsequent phases can go as easily as possible. Checking the quality of the delivered items should be the first step after receiving an order. Verifying the correctness of the quantity, item, and serial numbers is essential. Perishable goods require special care, thus it's important to check that everything is in good condition and that the temperature is correct throughout handling (Choi et al., 2018).

The next step in effective inventory management is accepting customer orders. Typically, a point of sale (POS) system is used to manage orders and collect payments. According to Choi et al. (2018), the POS system's inventory management capability, which is either incorporated into or connected to an inventory management programme, will allow warehouse personnel to check the order data. After a customer puts an order, the next step is to rapidly and accurately fulfill that order by sourcing the necessary products, packaging them, and sending them on their way (Alicke et al., 2017). If the second part of the procedure was enhanced, finding and selecting the products in the warehouse would be relatively simple. It's important to think about how the packaging will be used, how long it will last, and the impact it will have on the environment. As soon as the product has been dispatched, the client should receive an email confirming the shipment and providing tracking details (Alicke et al., 2017).

When restocking your stock, it is crucial to double-check the quantity of items ordered and the timeliness of the new orders. Stockouts and dead inventory are costly to businesses, but with the reorder point strategy, you can minimize both (Alicke et al., 2017). Some inventory management systems may automatically place reorders, which saves time and prevents human error.

2.2.2 Firms' Competitiveness

Competitiveness is "a multi-tiered and multi-faceted idea," according to Chikán et al. (2022), and it is intimately related to Michael Porter's seminal work. Ungerman et al. (2018) provide the results of a national-level competitiveness investigation of the extraordinary performance of businesses and industries across nations. His "diamond" paradigm clarifies the causal factors that affect a company's capacity to thrive in a global marketplace. Poon evaluates Porter (1990)'s scholarly outputs as well as related and later research findings (2018). With this approach, a company is viewed as a whole with a distinct strategy for competing in the market, however Ungerman et al. (2018) note that internal company characteristics were not investigated. The evolution and discussion of these aspects are covered in length in both of Porter's prior works (Porter, 1980, 1985). Ivanova and Kordos examine the national, regional, and commercial levels of competitiveness in a global context and offer recommendations for future research (2017).

Firm-level competitiveness was used as a euphemism for business performance in strategic management studies on the role and impact of functional strategies (such those in the production and operations management sectors) (Avella et al., 2001; Demeter, 2003). (Taouab and Issor, 2019). Chikán et al. (2022) defined and modeled firm competitiveness (FC), and they also looked at how FC and national competitiveness are related. This phrase is a starting point for several research that examine how competitive businesses are (Taouab and Issor, 2019; Bayon and Aguilera, 2021). In these competitiveness papers, surveys of firm-level investigations centered on the chief executive officer (CEO) or top-level decisions frequently

employ the RBV of the firm as a starting point (Barney 1991; Teece et al., 1997; Ungerman et al., 2018). Research in operations management has also started to support the use of RBV in business (Ungerman et al., 2018).

According to Baumann et al. (2019), economics, business, and management research look into firm competitiveness (FC) as a concept where the firm serves as the analytical unit and is embedded in its macro-level environments. The interconnectedness of these two ideas was underscored in our definition of "firm competitiveness," which reads, "firm competitiveness is a competence of a firm to sustainably perform its dual purpose: meeting customer demand at profit." To do this, one strategy is to offer consumers goods and services that are in greater demand than those offered by competitors. In order for a company to compete, it must be able to adapt quickly to changing social and economic norms and conditions. the two Aguileras Bayon (2020).

2.2.2.1 Determinants of Competitiveness

The literature has identified a number of elements that affect competitiveness (Mentel and Hajduk-Stelmachowicz, 2021; Braja and Gemzik-Salwach, 2019). In this context, macroeconomic and microeconomic traits were distinguished by Braja and Gemzik-Salwach (2019). The microeconomic basis, which policymakers have up until now ignored, is the cornerstone of macroeconomic reforms that support longterm economic progress. The financial-economic performance, fundamental needs, efficiency-improving elements, innovation, sophistication factors, institutions, and innovation were among the additional competitiveness-affecting aspects that were explored in earlier research (Sigue and Barry, 2020). (Ibragimov et al., 2019). Studies including the global competitiveness index, the economic freedom index, the global innovation index, and the human development index examine how economic factors affect a country's sustainability and competitiveness (Khan et al., 2019). Noting the enormous effects the COVID-19 outbreak has had on national growth and competitiveness (Braja and Gemzik-Salwach, 2019). The macroeconomic environment is the key factor determining competitiveness (Musyoka and Ocharo, 2018).

2.2.2.2 Competitive Strategies

According to Khan et al. (2019), a competitive strategy can be created by evaluating the benefits and drawbacks of competing companies and spotting market opportunities and threats. Businesses must create specialized marketing plans for each of their target markets if they want to remain competitive (Sebastian et al., 2017). In other words, a company's competitive strategy is its plan for how it plans to gain and keep a competitive advantage over its competitors. A competitive advantage is the ability to continually outperform the competition in terms of profit over time. In relation to a company's competitive strategy within a certain market, both the development of a competitive advantage and the maintenance of that advantage are studied.

Both proactive and reactive competitive strategies can lead to the development of a competitive advantage, as outlined by Singjai (2018). According to Singjai (2018), proactive strategies can be either (a) an effort to improve performance (a new game competitive strategy) or (b) an attempt to alter the rules of the game altogether (a different game competitive strategy). Finally, we look at three more types of competitive strategies: (a) developing a brand-new industry from scratch, (b) expanding into adjacent markets, and (c) entering into whole new markets altogether. The company's success is heavily influenced by its competitive strategy, which is in

turn largely determined by the nature of the market in which it operates. The market structure of a given sector could be advantageous or undesirable.

2.2.3 Firm Performance

According to Fitria (2018), successful performance involves achieving goals that contribute to the organization as a whole. It's not enough to achieve results; performance also depends on how well they align with the organization's overall mission. According to Milosevic et al. (2018), an organization's performance should be established from within its own operations, taking into account both its own goals and the fundamental and observable context in which it operates.

In a similar vein, Anwar and Abdullah (2021) argued that performance is tied to value and productivity, arguing that an organization can only claim success when all of its activities yield the intended result at a low cost, after accounting for waste and errors. It can also be thought of as a collection of separate actions that, taken together, make for a useful whole. Any organization can be considered successful if it is capable of and consistently succeeds in accomplishing its stated mission and objectives.

Efficiency, worth, minimizing waste, equity, and impact are all facets of organizational success. Competency, efficacy, value, uniqueness, the worth of the product, and cost-effectiveness are some of the metrics used to evaluate performance (Khalid, Haron, & Masron, 2018). In agreement with Taouab and Issor's (2019) view that performance should be achieved via assessing, direction, value, and worth.

Leito, Pereira, and Gonçalves (2019) state that there are two ways to evaluate an organization's efficacy: objectively and subjectively. One is objective and based on the organization's financial and accounting ratios at the end of the fiscal year; the other is subjective and relies on the opinions of those who had a hand in running the business and can attest to the quality of the results they saw (Isichei, Emmanuel, &

Odiba, 2020). Where there are publicly available reports on the organizations, the financial method is preferable; otherwise, the subjective method is more acceptable (Taouab and Issor, 2019). Since most telecommunication companies do not release their financials publicly, this study had to rely on anecdotal evidence to gauge their success.

2.2.3.1 Measures of Firm Performance

According to Kang et al. (2016), key performance indicators (KPIs) are measures that demonstrate how well an organization is performing in regard to a specific objective. The progress made toward the strategic objectives, which are frequently depicted on a strategy map, is tracked using key performance indicators (KPIs). To aid top management, the board, and other stakeholders in focusing on the metrics that are most important to the success of the firm, key performance indicators (KPIs) are frequently included in reporting scorecards or dashboards (Badawy et al., 2016). Financial key performance indicators, according to Kang et al. (2016), can also show changes in sales growth (by product family, channel, or customer segment). Typically, they are based on components of an income or balance sheet. Non-financial Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are used in addition to financial KPIs to measure the activities that a company considers essential to the accomplishment of its strategic goals. Non-financial KPIs are defined by Haddouch et al. (2019) to encompass measures including contacts with customers, staff, operations, quality, cycle time, and the company's supply chain or pipeline.

Some prefer the word "extra-financial" over "non-financial," which implies that all such measurements are ultimately monetary in origin, to characterize indicators that contribute to an organization's performance (Haddouch et al., 2019). Beyond financial and non-financial ones, other typical groupings of performance indicators include quantitative vs qualitative, leading versus trailing, short-term versus longterm, input, output, or process indicators, etc. According to Badawy et al. (2016), developing KPIs necessitates determining what is "key" to the organization. Operational metrics, sometimes known as "performance indicators" (PIs) to differentiate them from "key performance indicators), are equally significant (KPIs). Creating key performance indicators (KPIs) should be a step in a larger strategic management process that links the organization's mission, goals, and objectives to the specific strategic business goals it is working to attain. A critical initial step in this strategy is to comprehend the firm's value drivers as well as the fundamental activities and knowledge that support its value proposition.

By ensuring that corporate initiatives and individual actions are synchronized, key performance indicators (KPIs) aid in the implementation of strategies. Instead of concentrating just on financial performance as an outcome, well-designed KPIs can give management and the board a way to monitor the company's essential operations. Incorporating both financial and non-financial KPIs can increase the emphasis on long-term success rather than short-term financial performance, claim Badawy et al. (2016).

In today's competitive business world, every company, corporation, and organization must adhere to a set of standards in order to prosper (Jose et al., 2021). Performance optimization should be a company's top goal. A phase of organizational change may be decided upon by management if they are serious about increasing productivity. Analysts and investors frequently take into account ratio analysis and other non-traditional financial measurements. Performance assessment systems are crucial for planning, determining whether organizational goals have been reached, and rewarding managers (Badawy et al., 2016).

Potential investors may gain insight into a company's general health via its financial results. It offers a complete picture of the effective governance and current economic situation of the nation. Financial documents including the balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement can be used to assess the financial health of a company. A company is assessed using financial performance indicators based on quantifiable metrics. According to Badawy et al. (2016), it is inappropriate to gauge a company's financial success using just one statistic.

2.3 Theoretical Review

2.3.1 Resource-Based View (RBV)

Competitors in the manufacturing sector use their resources and expertise to gain an edge. The RBV, as described by Shafeey and Trott (2014), provides a framework for understanding how Manufacturing firms might achieve a competitive advantage. When a manufacturer can provide more value to its customers than its rivals while their rivals are unable to copy this innovation, the manufacturer has a competitive advantage (Eniola and Ektebang, 2014). According to the RBV, different types of manufacturing companies have access to different types of resources. When competitors have a hard time replicating an organization's resources, that organization has a competitive advantage, according to Shafeey and Trott (2014). If a resource meets these four criteria, it can be used to gain a competitive edge in the market. The characteristics for a strategic asset are that it be valuable, scarce, distinctive, and exploitable by the business (Coleman et al., 2013).

Companies in the industrial sector might acquire an edge in the market by allocating substantial resources. Kozlenkova et al. (2013) state that resources are valuable if they help a Manufacturing firm minimize costs or increase income. According to Barney (1999), a resource is valuable if it helps a manufacturing company take

advantage of possibilities or protect itself from threats from the outside world. To obtain an edge over the competition, you need more than just access to external chances, as your rivals may already be aware of them or even replicate them (Barney, 1999). When resources are scarce, a small number of companies tend to own monopolies over them, and the resources are imperfectly imitable (Kozlenkova et al., 2013).

Businesses get an edge when they make use of scarce, valuable resources, but only if they have the systems in place to fully use such assets (Barney, 1999). Companies strive to establish and make use of systems and assets that provide them an advantage over rivals. Business owners in Manufacturing have come to know that most conventional techniques for competing in the industry are easily imitated and transferred without providing a sustainable edge. Companies in the manufacturing sector are constantly on the lookout for strategies to obtain a competitive advantage (Coleman et al., 2013).

According to the RBV, the company possesses the assets necessary to give it an edge in the market and steer it toward sustainable success. The RBV examines and interprets a company's internal resources, placing a premium on those that can help it attain and maintain competitive advantage over the long term. One way of looking at resources is as inputs that help businesses function.

A company's financial health can be evaluated by analyzing its financial performance. These metrics are used to assess a business's efficiency in bringing in constant revenue and maintaining operational profitability. Measuring a company's success in ways other than its financial health is known as non-financial performance measurement. These indicators assess how well and how long an organization performs in the long run. Simply said, non-financial performance indicators are

metrics that measure a company's success in areas other than finances. Non-financial measures are also demanded by management because of how easily they can be connected to the overall business strategy. The success of a firm can be gauged by how well it manages its finances and how much money it brings in from its core operations.

2.3.2 Stochastic Inventory Theory

In the face of demand uncertainty and/or other system-related variables, stochastic inventory control is used to determine when to issue replenishment orders and the appropriate order amount (Ngo, 2020). The primary purpose of inventory theory is to optimize product supply in order to meet customer demand. We contend that buyers express requests for goods, and sellers provide those goods, regardless of whether or not monetary exchange takes place.

In order to quickly respond to customer needs, businesses must maintain an inventory of products available for sale. The purpose of inventory theory is to provide management with guidance for minimizing inventory costs without sacrificing service to customers. Inventory refers to the stock of a product at any given time. A customer's order is considered fulfilled if the quantity ordered has been transferred from the available inventory to the buyer. Shortages occur when demands are not promptly met (Sutcher et al., 2019). Shortages are backorders if clients are willing to wait; otherwise, they represent revenue losses. Backorders go by a few different names, including backlogs and backlogged demand. There will inevitably come a moment when inventory management needs to restock on this item.

If an order is placed with an external supplier or a facility that produces goods for internal use, the order amount is a run, batch, or lot of the product (Peymankar et al., 2018). The order lead time is the time it takes to go from placing an order to receiving

the full quantity of goods ordered. That description is purposefully vague to allow for partial order fulfillment at different periods. On order refers to the quantity of the good that the inventory management has ordered but has not yet received. Available stock + orders minus backorders equals system stock, often known as inventory position (Sutcher et al., 2019). It indicates the amount on hand to satisfy potential demands without placing additional orders.

2.4 Empirical Review

2.4.1 Inventory Management Practices

The goal of Atnafu and Balda's (2018) study was to conduct an experimental investigation of how inventory management practices affect a company's performance and ability to compete. The study used data gathered from 188 MSEs in the manufacturing sub-sector to evaluate the relationships and hypotheses proposed in the conceptual framework using structural equation modeling (SEM).

The results demonstrate that improved inventory management can boost an organization's performance and competitive advantage. Gaining an edge over rivals can also increase productivity within a company. Giving MSEs the resources and training they require to enhance their inventory management procedures can increase their competitiveness and organizational performance. It is advised that those in charge of making policy, academic institutions, non-governmental organizations, and other interested parties cooperate to help MSEs in this way. They would have a greater favorable effect on the economy as a result. Please keep in mind that the results of this study can only be generalized to larger or more generalized sectors; they are only applicable to industrial MSEs.

In order to accomplish this, Panigrahi et alresearch .'s (2022) looks into how knowledge of inventory management impacts both operational and commercial

outcomes. This study focused on manufacturing-related Indian SMEs in order to elucidate the function of OPs as a bridge between KIMP and BP. By examining data from 351 senior executives at 170 Indian SMEs, this study evaluated the aforementioned connection. The comprehensive study, which included reliability, validity, and hypothesis testing, was conducted using cutting-edge SmartPLS-SEM 3.3.3 software.

The findings show that KIMP has a direct impact on OP, and as a result, a firm's OP has a significant impact on its overall BP. Blood pressure is barely impacted by the KIMP. The findings support this by demonstrating the significant mediating role that OPs play in the link between KIMP and BP.

The goal of Odhiambo and Kihara's (2018) study was to examine how supply chain efficiency at public health facilities in Kisumu County was impacted by inventory management strategies. The 12 government health facilities at levels 4 and 5 in the Kenyan county of Kisumu served as the research's unit of analysis because they had a degree of autonomy over their inventory and supply chain management. The sample size of 84 consisted of procurement officers, store clerks, logistics officers, and information technology employees from those hospitals. For this investigation, researchers gathered data in 2018. A recent census counted all 12 hospitals in the city. A semi-structured questionnaire was used to collect primary data, and a procurement cost data sheet was used to collect secondary data. The quantitative data were analyzed using percentages, means, standard deviations, and frequencies, and the inferential statistics were analyzed using regression and correlation.

The statistical analysis was performed using SPSS version 21, and charts, tables, and graphs were used to present the findings. A regression analysis revealed that while demand forecasting had no significant impact on supply chain performance, lean

24

inventory procedures, the accuracy of inventory records, and information technology did. The study discovered that information technology, accurate inventory records, and lean inventory approaches had the biggest impacts on the supply chain performance of public health facilities in Kisumu County.

A mathematical model for Post-Disaster Humanitarian Logistics (PD-HL), developed by Loree and Aros-Vera in 2018, can be used to determine where PODs should be located and how supplies should be dispersed. The idea of having many PODs serve demand nodes while reducing the costs of facility location, logistics, and deprivation (the cost imposed on survivors due to the lack of access to key supplies).

This is crucial in situations where a single POD might not have enough inventory to satisfy all of the demand points that have been allocated to it. The social costs and advantages of facility placement must be considered in light of the system's time dimension, as this study emphasizes.

2.4.2 Influence of inventory management practice on Firms' Competitiveness

Atnafu and Balda's (2018) study set out to conduct an experimental investigation of how inventory management practices affect a company's ability to compete and perform well. With data gathered from 188 MSEs in the manufacturing sub-sector, the study used structural equation modeling (SEM) to evaluate the connections and hypotheses proposed in the conceptual framework.

The results demonstrate that improved inventory management can boost an organization's performance as well as its ability to compete. A business's productivity can be increased by having an advantage over the competitors. By giving MSEs the tools and resources they require to enhance their inventory management procedures, it is possible to increase their competitiveness and organizational performance. Because of this, it is advised that those in charge of making policy, as well as

academic institutions, non-governmental organizations, and other interested parties, work to promote MSEs. Thus, their beneficial effect on the economy would be amplified. The results of this study cannot be generalised to more expansive or generalized sectors; they are restricted to the industrial MSEs.

The study by Panigrahi et al.(2022) aims to do this by examining how knowledge of inventory management impacts both operational and financial outcomes. This study tried to define the function of OPs as a middleman between KIMP and BP, focusing on Indian SMEs in the manufacturing sector. Data from 351 high-level employees at 170 Indian SMEs were analyzed for this study to explore the aforementioned connection. Reliability, validity, and hypothesis testing were all performed as part of the comprehensive study using cutting-edgeSmartPLS-SEM3.3.3 software.

The findings demonstrate that KIMP has a direct impact on OP, and as a result, a firm's OP significantly influences its overall BP. On blood pressure, the KIMP has a very small effect. According to the findings, OPs play a significant mediating role in the link between KIMP and BP.

In their 2018 study, Odhiambo and Kihara sought to understand how inventory management strategies affected the effectiveness of the supply chain at public health facilities in Kisumu County. Due to its semi-autonomous inventory and supply chain management, the county of Kisumu in Kenya was chosen as the study's analysis unit, together with its 12 government health facilities at levels 4 and 5. A total of 84 employees from those hospitals made up the sample, including procurement officers, store clerks, logistics officers, and information technology staff. Researcher data for this analysis were acquired in 2018. A recent census included data from all 12 hospitals in the city. A semi-structured questionnaire and a procurement cost data sheet were used to collect the primary and secondary data, respectively. Inferential
statistics were analyzed using regression and correlation analysis, whereas the quantitative data were analyzed using percentages, means, standard deviations, and frequencies.

The statistical analysis was conducted using SPSS version21, and the outcomes were presented using graphs, tables, and charts. The accuracy of inventory records, information technology, and lean inventory practices were found to have a substantial impact on supply chain performance, while demand forecasting did not. The research discovered that lean inventory practices, accurate inventory records, and information technology had the biggest impacts on the supply chain performance of public health facilities in Kisumu County.

As part of their 2018 research, Loree and Aros-Vera develop a mathematical model for Post-Disaster Humanitarian Logistics (PD-HL) that may be used to determine where PODs should be located and how supplies should be dispersed. The idea of serving demand nodes through a large number of PODs while reducing the expenses of facility location, logistics, and deprivation (the cost imposed on survivors due to the lack of access to key supplies).

This is particularly significant in cases when a single POD might not have enough stock to satisfy the demands of all the demand points that have been assigned to it. This study highlights the need of evaluating the social benefits and costs of facility placement in light of the system's time dimension.

2.4.3 Inventory Management Practice and Organizational Performance

At order to determine if inventory control practices in public hospitals act as a moderator between competency and organizational effectiveness, Hashmi et al. (2021) conducted a study. For this quantitative investigation, information from 200 individuals was gathered via multistage cluster sampling. Both exploratory and confirmatory factor analyses supported the model of structural equation modeling.

The findings of this study demonstrate that efficient inventory control systems positively affect the study variables and completely moderate their interactions. The sign also stated that improved service quality and cheaper costs as a result of competent and skilled staff members managing inventory effectively had led to an improvement in the organization's success. An integrated second-order model based on this research will be beneficial for public hospitals, the healthcare sector as a whole, businesses managing mega-structured inventories, and the body of knowledge as a whole.

In a study, Muchaendepi et al. investigated the inventory management (IM) strategies used by small and medium-sized firms (SMEs) in Harare, Zimbabwe's manufacturing sector (2019). The research population was given by the industrial areas of Gleview Complex, Siya So Mbare, Kuwadzana, Gazaland, and Magaba. Participants from each of the companies under investigation were selected using purposeful sampling. For this study, qualitative, descriptive research techniques were employed. A deliberate sampling strategy was also used in the study. 244 respondents were used to create the sample. To get the data, the returned surveys were examined. The results show that the majority of SMEs only utilize the Just-In-Time method for inventory management and are unaware of or do not employ any other automated systems or processes. Due to just-in-time production (JIT), which requires constant communication with suppliers and a reduction in material delivery periods, small and medium-sized businesses (SMEs) struggle in the supply chain.

However, without any form of electronic communication, they'll have to place orders manually, which will inevitably cause delays for the customer. Researchers came to

28

a conclusion based on their findings and asked for additional research into some grey areas.

Simon and Njoku's (2018) research analyzes the relationship between inventory management and productivity at Dansa Food Limited. Inventory control issues have been poorly addressed, resulting in inefficiency and uncharted inconsistency. In order to ensure consistent output, maximize the use of resources like labor and machinery, and promptly respond to the needs of individual clients, it is crucial to design and maintain an optimal inventory system. A non-probabilistic, but intentional, sampling strategy was used in the survey research. A standardized questionnaire with clear questions and a weighted 5-point scale were used to collect and analyze the results. A t-test for independent samples was used to analyze the data and verify the assumptions. According to the findings, inventory management positively affects key performance indicators within businesses, which in turn helps Dansa Food Limited produce an optimal quantity and quality of goods within budget, deliver them to customers on time, and generate a healthy profit. The study concludes that a strong strategy and policy framework for successful inventory control and its sustainability is essential for the ongoing enhancement of organizational performance.

Musau et al. (2017) conducted their research to better understand how inventory management affects the efficiency, effectiveness, and profitability of supply chains in Kenya's textile manufacturing industry. The theory of inventory management served as a framework for the research. The research method was a convergent parallel mixed-methods approach. A total of 196 participants were interviewed for the study, all of whom worked in the procurement departments or reported to the department heads of one of 15 textile manufacturing firms in Nairobi County. As a result, 139 people were included in the sample. Employees from each textile

29

company's procurement divisions were selected using a combination of stratified and basic random selection. The information from primary sources was gathered with the help of questionnaires and interview guides.

Both qualitative and quantitative data were collected and analyzed using SPSS Version 22, a social science statistical software.

We used inferential statistics, namely hierarchical multiple regression and correlation analysis, to examine the connection between the variables and our hypotheses. Tables, graphs, and charts were used to display the final analyzed data. Based on the results, it was determined that inventory management is being used by textile manufacturing companies in Kenya. The research finds that inventory management can have a positive impact on Textile companies' performance, so the industry has implemented clear mechanisms and invested in advanced material flow systems to ensure a steady stream of goods that can be tracked as they move through the supply chain.

2.5 Conceptual Framework

The conceptual framework of a study generally seeks to outline the variables of interest and the focus of the research. Its purpose is to make a study meaningful and manageable. The conceptual framework of this study is depicted in Figure 2.1:

BADY

NO

ASAPS W SANE



Figure 2.1: Conceptual Framework

Source: Author's Construction (2023).

Figure 2.1 is showing the relationship between the independent variable (Inventory Management Practices) and the dependent variables (firms' competitiveness and organizational performance). Therefore the study is to examine the relationship between the influence of inventory management practices on firms' competitiveness and organizational performance.

2.6 Hypothesis Formulation

Two hypotheses are developed in light of the literature and the study's goals. For example, Chikán et al. (2022) discovered a favorable influence of dynamic production capacities on the firm's perceived competitiveness, while Kurdi et al. (2022) indicated a strong beneficial impact of blockchain and smart inventory systems on SC performance. The following was the hypothesis for this study:

H1: inventory management practice has a positive and significant influence on firms' competitiveness among Manufacturing Sub-Sector.

A considerable positive effect and full mediation of inventory control procedures between the study variables have been established in another situation by researchers like Hashmi et al. (2021). Ungerman et al. (2018) present the findings of a nationallevel competitiveness inquiry on the exceptional performance of firms and their industries in various countries, and Simon and Njoku (2018) indicate that inventory control has a significant positive impact on the performance parameters of organizations. According to Ungerman et al. (2018), the diamond framework illustrates explanatory elements that allow businesses to successfully compete in their global sectors. The following was the hypothesis for this study:

H2: Inventory management practice has a positive and significant influence on organizational performance in the manufacturing sub-sector.



CHAPTER THREE

METHODOLOGY

3.0 Introduction

This section presents the analytical techniques and practices that are employed to meet the research's goals. This chapter covers the methods used in data analysis, such as the description of the data obtained, data type, source, technique, and so on. This chapter also discusses the research design, study population, sample size, sampling methodologies, and data collection and analysis processes.

3.1 Research Design

The study specifically employs a quantitative descriptive research strategy, with which it will gather quantifiable data for the population sample's statistical analysis. The purpose of quantitative descriptive research is to aid in statistically describing, aggregating, and presenting the relevant constructs or relationships between them.

3.2 Population Size

SMEs in Tamale Metropolis are included in the study population. According to Lundberg et al. (2021), specifying the characteristics of the people who are eligible for the study gives the sample size calculation the scope of the complete population or universe. Issahaku (2015) asserts that SMSs have a significant role in lowering unemployment in the Tamale metropolitan, significantly boosting tax income collection for the Metropolis, and generally enhancing the quality and quantity of goods and services produced and consumed in the Metropolis.

Alhassan et al. (2016) estimate that the Tamale Metropolis has 386 registered SMEs. Since the focus of the study is SMEs in the Tamale Metropolis, 386 people make up the study's population. The study makes use of SMEs in the service, manufacturing, and trading sectors.

3.3 Sample Size

Rahman (2020) claims that if your sample is too small, you run the danger of including an abnormally large number of people, which could distort your results. However, a much larger sample might give you far more accuracy, but the added effort and money might mean the advantages aren't worth it.

Since the population is large some of the SMEs are being sampled based on the Slovin formula. According to Tejada and Punzalan (2012) is used to calculate the sample size (n) given the population size (N) and a margin of error (e).

N

 $1 + N(e)^{2}$

It is computed as n =

Whereas:

n = no. of samples

N = total population which is 386 for this study

e = error margin/margin of error which is also 0.05 (confidence level of 95 per cent).

386 1 + 386 (0.05)²

190

Therefore the sample size for the study is 190.

3.4 Sampling Technique

NSAP

A straightforward random sample method was used to analyze the population by obtaining data and examining it. Simple random sampling is a sort of probability sampling where the researcher randomly chooses a subset of participants from a population, according to Mweshi and Sakyi (2020).

Each SME has an equal chance of being chosen for this study using a straightforward random sampling procedure. Then, data are gathered from as much of this random selection as possible (Mweshi and Sakyi, 2020). It is typically easier to choose a smaller sample size from the existing bigger population because basic random sampling requires a large sample frame.

3.5 Source of Data

The researcher will learn from the respondents, who are SME owners or managers, and use the information they provide to further the study by using data collection devices to gather pertinent information from them. In this study, questionnaires are used as the main data collection method. The main instrument for gathering data for the study is a formal questionnaire. It makes use of a closed-ended questionnaire. A closed-ended questionnaire, according to Mweshi and Sakyi (2020), is quicker to complete, which boosts response rates. It's also simpler to analyze the data and quantify overall sentiment, which allows for quicker action on the feedback. Four components, numbered A through D, make up the questionnaire.

3.6 Variable Description and Measurement

It is essential for the researcher to comprehend the different levels of measurement because these levels of measurement, coupled with how the research question is written, decide what type of statistical analysis is appropriate (Norman, 2010). A variable is a quality that may be measured and assigned a range of values. Table 3.2 displays the sources of the measuring tool and a description of how each study variable is measured.

KNUST

Table 3.2: Variable Description and Measurement

Number of Variable Construct Measure Source Items Vendor Managed Inventory **Inventory Management Practices** 5 Likert scale questionnaires Wanyonyi (2017) 4 Economic Order Quantity 5 Likert scale questionnaires 3 Wanyonyi (2017) Just-in-Time 5 Likert scale questionnaires 4 Wanyonyi (2017) A-B-C Model 5 Likert scale questionnaires 3 Wanyonyi (2017) 5 Likert scale questionnaires **Demand Forecasting** 4 Wanyonyi (2017) 5 Likert scale questionnaires Firms' Competitiveness Delivery Farida and Setiawan (2022) 5 Price 5 Likert scale questionnaires Farida and Setiawan (2022) 5 5 Likert scale questionnaires Quality 4 Farida and Setiawan (2022) Firm Performance **Financial Performance** 5 Likert scale questionnaires Fatihudin (2018) 6 **Operational Performance** 5 Likert scale questionnaires Kaydos (2020) 6 If Below 10 = 1, 10 - 19 = 2,Firm Age Years Fatihudin (2018) n/a 20-39 = 3 and Above 30=4 Firm Size Number of employees If 1-5=1, 6-29=2, 30-99Fatihudin (2018) n/a =3 and 100+=4If : sole proprietorship=1, Legal Status n/a limited company = 2 and joint n/a Kaydos (2020) stock company =3 Source: Author's Construction (2023). 100 7 BADY

36

NO

3.7 Model Specification

The specification of the model is being used for determining which independent variables include and exclude the equation for regression. The researcher desires to find the relation between the independent and the dependent variable, and the need for model selection always begins.

The analysis below is demonstrating the connection between the dependent variable and all other relevant variables to help understand the general purpose of this study and in trying to evaluate the impact of changes in all the independent variables on the dependency variable.

 $FIP = a + \beta_1 FAGE + \beta_2 FSIZE + \beta_3 LES + \beta_4 IMP + ei \dots$

Model 1

 $FIC = a + \beta_1 FAGE + \beta_2 FSIZE + \beta_3 LES + \beta_4 IMP + ei \dots$ Model 2

Where



a = Represents the y-intercept and

 β_1 to β_4 = Coefficients of Determination

3.8 Robustness Test

In SPSS, the Cronbach's alpha is used to assess the reliability of the research instrument. Cronbach's alpha is influenced by the total variance, the number of test items, and the average covariance between item pairings. Most frequently, the internal consistency of a survey or questionnaire with numerous Likert-type scales and questions is evaluated using Cronbach's alpha (Vaske et al., 2017).

If two items measure the same thing, it can be determined by Cronbach's alpha. In order to be considered good, Cronbach's alpha must be at least 0.70; if it is less, the common range's internal consistency is poor. The highest projected value is 0.90, and anything greater is seen as unnecessary.

3.8 Data Analysis

Statistical methods from the Statistical Package for the Social Sciences are being used by the researchers to produce the data analysis based on the study's objectives and queries (SPSS). The gathered data will be sorted, categorised, and tabulated for convenience of analysis. Descriptive statistics make up a significant portion of the data analysis.

The results of the data processing are then examined, conclusions drawn, and submissions made. Additionally, the study made use of factor analysis. A technique called factor analysis is used to break down a large number of variables into a smaller number of elements. This method creates a common score by taking the most common variance possible from all the variables.

CHAPTER FOUR

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

4.0 Introduction

This chapter presents and analyses data. It begins with the analysis of the demographic data of respondents. The chapter ends with a discussion of the results linking the results with other literature.

4.1 Demographic Information

To understand the background characteristics of the respondents, their demographic information is inquired. The demographic information inquired about are gender, level of education of the respondents, number of years in business, economic sector and size of business the responses are presented in Table 4.1 using frequency and percentage.

4.1.1 Firms Characteristics

Three characteristics of the farms were inquired about, these include the firm legal status, years of operating and the firm size which was measured by the number of employees working in the firm.

In the case of the legal status, it was revealed that firms which are sole proprietorships were 103 (54%), those that were limited companies were 56 (29%) and those that were joint stock Companies were 31 (16%). This implies that the majority of the firms are sole proprietorships which is above 50%.

SANE

Particulars		Freq.	Percent
Firms Characteristics	Legal Status		
	Sole Proprietorship	103	54%
	Limited Company	56	29%
	Joint Stock Company	31	16%
	Total	190	100%
	Years of Operating FAGE		
	Below 10 years	34	18%
	10 - 19 years	86	45%
	20 and 39	40	21%
	Above 30 years	30	16%
	Total	190	100%
	E' C'		
	Firm Size	70	420/
	MICTO Small	79 70	42%
	Small	12	38%
	Medium	28	15%
	Tatal	11	0%
CA		190	100%
Respondent Characteristics	Work Position	S	
	Owner	79	42%
	General Manager	70	37%
	Sales/Finance Manager	29	15%
	Other	12	6%
	Total	190	100%
	Education Level		-
3	No formal education	5	3%
E.	Certificate	42	22%
0	Diploma/HND	54	28%
40	Degree and above	89	47%
	Total	190	100%
~	SANE NO		
	Gender		
	Male	131	69%
	Female	59	31%
	Total	190	100%

Table 4.1: Demographic Information

Source: Field Work (2023)

In the case of the years of operating, the study revealed that firms that have operated for less than 10 years were 34 (18%), those between 10 and 19 years were 86 (45%), between 20 and 39 was also 40 (21%) and those above 30 years were 30 (16%), this indicates that majority of the firm has operated for 10 - 19 years.

With respect to the size of the firms, it was revealed that firms at the micro level were 79 (42%), small-level firms were 72 (38%), medium-level firms were 28 (15%) and the large-level firms were 11 (6%). This implies that the majority of the firms are at the micro level.

4.1.2 Respondent Characteristics

The demographic characteristics inquired about the respondents include their work position, the highest level of education and their gender. In the case of the work position, the study found that those that are owners were 79 (42%), general managers were 70 (37%), those that are sales/finance managers were 29 (15%) and other positions were 12 (6%). This implies that the majority of the respondents are the owners of the businesses.

Also the highest level of education of the respondents, it was revealed that those without formal education were 5 (3%), those with certificates were 42 (22%), those with Diploma/HND were 54 (28%) and those with a degree and above were 89 (47%). This result indicates that the majority of the respondents are degree and above holders.

In the case of their gender, the study found that those that were males were 131 which represents 69%, and those that are females were 59 which also represents 31%. This means the majority of the respondents are male.

4.2 Validity and Reliability

This section presents the validity and reliability analysis which includes exploratory factor analysis and the Cronbach alpha test.

4.2.1 Reliability Test

The reliability test is carried out in SPSS using Cronbach Alpha as suggested, and the results are shown in Table 4.2. Cronbach's alpha is most commonly used to assess the internal consistency of a questionnaire (or survey) that has several Likert-type scales and items (Ekolu & Quainoo, 2019).

S/N	Variable	N of Items	Cronbach's Alpha
P	Inventory Management Practices	0.691	18
2	Firms' Competitiveness	0.610	14
3	Firm Performance	0.738	12
3	Firm Performance	0.738	12

Table 4.2 Reliability Test

Source: Field Work (2023).

As shown in Table 4.2, the independent variable which is inventory management practices recorded a Cronbach's Alpha value of 0.691, while the two dependent variables which are the firms' competitiveness and firm performance recorded Cronbach's Alpha values of 0.610 and 0.738 respectively. According to Ekolu and Quainoo (2019), a variable is reliable when the P-value is more than 0.8 and unreliable when the P is less than 0.6. Therefore the Cronbach's Alpha values recorded for these three variables are accepted, indicating that the data is reliable.

4.2.2 Exploratory Factor Analysis

Exploratory factor analysis is a statistical method for reducing the number of summary variables from the original set of data and examining the theoretical underpinnings of a phenomenon. It is employed to ascertain the framework of the relationship between the variable and the respondent.

By performing a factor analysis, the study provides empirical data to check whether the constructs are indeed properly represented by the items. With the confirmatory factor analysis, four results items are expected which include Bartlett's test of sphericity, the Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin (KMO), Communalities (C) of each item, and the Total Variance Explained (TVE) of each variable. All relevant data are evaluated simultaneously using the KMO and Bartlett tests and the results are presented in Table 4.3.

S/N	Variables	КМО	Bartlett's	df	P Value
1	Inventory Management Practices	0.758	831.315	153	0.000
2	Firms' Competitiveness	0.698	511.919	91	0.000
3	Firm Performance	0.786	627.335	66	0.000
Source	Field Work (2023).			100	31

Fable	4.3: K	MO al	nd Ba	rtlett	's Test
--------------	--------	-------	-------	--------	---------

To ascertain whether a dataset is suitable for a data reduction technique, Bartlett's Test of Sphericity is used. According to Ekolu and Quainoo (2019), the dataset is suitable for a data reduction strategy if the p-value from the Bartlett's Test of Sphericity is lower than the selected significance threshold (0.05 in this case). According to the study's conclusions, a dataset is appropriate for a data reduction strategy if the p-value is less than 0.05.

The KMO test aids in evaluating the reliability of variable factor analyses. Since factor analysis always produces factors, the objective is to verify that the resulting factor structure is objective by supplying a minimal amount of correlation within a set of variables. The results of the KMO test are 0.758, 0.698, and 0.786 for the practices of inventory management, firm competitiveness, and firm performance, respectively. If the KMO score is more than 0.50, it can be considered acceptable; if it is higher than 0.70, it can be considered superior. The relevance indicates that factor analysis is appropriate.

The Bartlett's sphericity test can be used to check whether the correlations in the data are strong enough to be used with a dimension-reduction technique like principal components analysis or common factor analysis. If the KMO value is higher than 0.5 and the significance level of the Bartlett's test is lower than 0.05, there may be a significant correlation in the data. Variable collinearity is the degree to which one variable is correlated with another. It is evident that the population correlation matrix is not an identical matrix because the P values obtained are less than.05.

When it comes to communalities, values between 0.25 and 0.4 have been proposed as acceptable cutoff values, with ideal communalities being 0.7 or higher. As shown in Table 4.4 all the items recorded communalities value between 0.45 and 0.84 means all the items meet the accepted values.

Another value assessed in Table 4.4 is the Total Variance Explained (TVE) which indicates the percentage at which the items explain the variable, 62%, 62%, and 59% are recorded for inventory management practices, firms' competitiveness and firm performance respectively. These results imply that the research instrument is regarded as a trustworthy instrument for the study.

Table 4.4: Communalities and Descriptive Statistics

VARIABLES/STATEMENT	Mean	SD	Ext.	TVE
INVENTORY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES				62%
Vendor Managed Inventory	3.91	0.91		
This firm provides vendors with all inventory information necessary for replenishment	4.01	0.86	0.78	
This firm vendor uses this information to monitor inventory or place new orders in a continuous manner	3.94	0.83	0.64	
Our vendor is given access to the firm inventory and demand information	3.88	0.92	0.61	
The vendor has the authority and the obligation to replenish the purchaser's inventory according to collectively agreed on inventory concepts and targets	3.81	1.02	0.65	
		/		
Economic Order Quantity	4.02	0.79		
The firm knows with certainty the replenishment period of its items	3.94	0.82	0.62	
The stocks or sales made by a firm remain unchanged throughout the period	4.12	0.78	0.60	
When stocks reach zero level, an order for replenishment is placed without further delay	3.99	0.76	0.55	
Just-in-Time	3.36	0.92		
The firm employs a zero-stock level of its inventory	3.81	0.73	0.51	
The ownership of the inventory does not belong to this firm	3.25	1.03	0.46	
There is a shared product design with suppliers and clients	3.01	1.00	0.68	
	-			
A-B-C Model	3.36	0.97		
There exists preventive protection in this firm	3.34	1.02	0.69	
The management has separated items with the high value from those of lesser value	3.14	0.97	0.63	
There is a dedicated supervisor who manages the high-value products	3.59	0.94	0.58	

KNUST

Demand Forecasting	3.47	1.04		
Their low-value products are less supervised by the firm management	4.23	1.01	0.59	
Our firm adjusts forecasts for seasonality	1.96	1.19	0.63	
Our firm looks out for trends in the historical demand data and adjusts inventory forecasts accordingly to trends	3.07	1.16	0.77	
Our firm inputs any sales and marketing insights into the inventory forecasts to make them as accurate as possible.	4.23	0.97	0.61	
Our firm adjusts inventory forecasting intervals	3.87	0.89	0.63	
FIRMS' COMPETITIVENESS		-		62
Delivery	3.97	0.87		
Ability to rapidly change production volumes.	4.08	0.82	0.52	
Manufacture a broad product mix within the same facilities.	4.11	0.86	0.65	
Ability to rapidly modify methods for materials.	4.19	0.74	0.59	
Ability to rapidly modify methods for components.	3.96	0.80	0.69	
Being able to provide fast-response deliveries from order to end customer.	3.48	1.11	0.65	
Price	3.23	1.10		
Ensure that the price of a product is in line with the market price	2.68	1.30	0.58	
Attach importance to the distinctiveness of the company brand in its pricing.	3.08	1.18	0.62	
Price some products according to the customer's perception of value.	3.19	1.14	0.70	
Ensure that the price of a product is in line with the market price	3.64	0.97	0.63	
Offering lower-priced products.	3.57	0.91	0.60	
Quality	3.37	1.08		
Conformance quality (i.e., the degree to which a product's operating characteristics meet established standards).	4.23	1.01	0.48	
SA46E 100				

VNIICT				
Product durability (i.e., the amount of time or use before the product breaks down and replacement is preferred to continued repair).	1.96	1.19	0.73	
Product reliability (i.e., the probability of a product malfunctioning or failing within a specified time period).	3.07	1.16	0.77	
Performance quality (i.e., a product's primary operating characteristics).	4.23	0.97	0.51	
FIRM PERFORMANCE				57%
Financial Performance	3.09	1.11		
our company is able to make cost reduction efforts	3.51	1.03	0.563	
High return on capital	3.05	1.06	0.577	
Net profits continue to increase	3.11	1.06	0.581	
our company has good liquidity (cash)	2.83	1.14	0.573	
Assets have a good rate of return	3.01	1.20	0.697	
Sales increase	3.03	1.16	0.628	
THE REAL				
Operational Performance	3.72	0.98		
The ability to handle varied customer/market needs	4.03	0.96	0.553	
Consistency in meeting the needs of customers	3.97	0.94	0.508	
The nature of product/service support to customers	4.19	0.74	0.570	
The extent of variety in products/services offered to customers	3.96	0.80	0.443	
our company is able to utilize our resources (e.g. human skills, time)	3.48	1.11	0.829	
there is flexibility in production/service delivery processes	2.68	1.30	0.559	

W JSANE NO BADWE

SD = standard deviation: $E_{xt.} = E_{xt}$ traction and TVE = Total Variance Explained

Source: Field Work (2023).

4.3 Correlations Matrix

Table 4.5 displays the correlations of the variables. The correlations, in this case, Pearson's Correlation, are represented by the values. The significance level is indicated by the stars. The values show that there is a relationship between the variables.

		FAGE	FSIZE	LES	IMP	FIC	FP
FAGE	Pearson Correlation Sig. (2-tailed)	1					
	N	190					
FSIZE	Pearson Correlation	.102	1				
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.163					
	Ν	190	190				
LES	Pearson Correlation	.015	.656**	1			
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.639	.000				
	Ν	190	190	190			
IMP	Pearson Correlation	.010	059	071	1		
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.891	.415	.332			
	Ν	190	190	190	190		
FIC	Pearson Correlation	040	.038	016	.386**	1	
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.583	.606	.826	.000		
	N	190	190	190	190	190	
FIP	Pearson Correlation	111	069	025	.469**	.501**	1
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.126	.346	.730	.000	.000	
	Ν	190	<u>19</u> 0	190	<u>19</u> 0	190	190

Table 4.5: Correlations Matrix

FIP = Firm Performance, FIC=Firms' Competitiveness, FAGE=Firm Age, FSIZE=Firm Size, LES=Legal Status and IMP=Inventory Management Practices

NO

**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).

Source: Field Work (2023).

As shown in Table 4.5, firm performance is found to correlate with firms' competitiveness (r=.501, p=0.000) and inventory management practices (r=0.469, p=0.000). Also, it was

ANF

revealed that firms' competitiveness correlate with inventory management practices (r=0.386, p=0.000).

4.4 Regression Analysis

In this section regression analysis is performed. This includes the relationship between the control variables, the independent variable, and the dependent variables. Multiple regression is used to conduct the analysis. The results are presented in Table 4.6.

VARIABLES	MODEL 1	MODEL 2
Firm Age	-0.062**	-0.020
N. 1. M	(-1.707)	(-0.787)
Firm Size	-0.038	0.04
	(-0.736)	(1.134)
		1
Legal Status	0.036	-0.025
	(0.598)	(-0.611)
Inventory Management Practices	0.671***	0.361***
	(7.295)	(5.743)
(Constant)	1 122***	2 241***
(Constant)	1.155	2.241
	(3.165)	(9.159)
R Square	0 336	0 257
	14.00	0.237
F	14.28	8.01
P-Value	0.000	0.000
n	190	190

Table 4.6: Multiple Regression Analysis	,
---	---

Dependent Variable: firm performance and firms' competitiveness *** p<.01, ** p<.05, * p<.1.

Source: Field Work (2023).

The control variable used in the regression analysis includes the firm age, firm size and legal Status, whiles the independent variables were inventory management practices and

two independent variables which are firm performance and firms' competitiveness. Since the dependent variables are two, the study used two models as shown in Table 4.5.

Model 1 has firm performance as the dependent variable whiles firms' competitiveness was used as the dependent variable in Model 2. In the case of model 1, an r-square of 0.336 was recorded whiles 0.257 was recorded for model 2. This implies that the model explains the dependent variables by 33.6% and 25.7%. Both models recorded the same p-value of 0.000, this indicated that the model explain both dependent significantly.

The study also revealed that, in model 1, one of the control variables firm age (β =-0.062, t=-1.707, p<0.05) was found to be to have a significant influence, but firm Size (β =-0.038, t=-0.736, p>0.05) and legal status (β =0.036, t=0.598, p>0.05). In the case of model 2, none of the control variables was found to have a significant influence. But the independent variable was found to have a positive and significant influence on the dependent variables.

4.5 Discussion of the Results

The primary purpose of the research was to analyze the methods of inventory management used by SMEs in the Manufacturing Sector. Muchaendepi et al. (2019) state that businesses can benefit from inventory management by learning when and how much stock to order. It keeps tabs on stock levels from arrival to departure. The method recognizes patterns and adjusts accordingly to guarantee adequate supply to meet demand and advance notice of impending shortages.

Table 4.4 shows that when it comes to inventory management, the majority of respondents agree with the use of vendor-managed inventory (Mean=3.91, SD=0.91), economic order quantity (Mean=4.02, SD=0.79), Just-in-Time (Mean=3.36, SD=0.92), the A-B-C Model (Mean=3.36, SD=0.97), and demand forecasting (Mean=3.47, SD=1.04). That's why

manufacturing SMEs use methods like economic order quantity, just-in-time, alternatingbasis models, and demand forecasting when it comes to inventory management.

Similarly, Atnafu and Balda (2018a) claimed that small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) have been slower to implement ABC analysis than major corporations. Economic Order Quantity (EOQ) is regarded by Gallino et al. (2017) as the most fundamental and basic model that has been created throughout the years for specific commodities. Finding the EOQ for each inventory item helps cut down on ordering and storage fees (Riza et al., 2018). This model has the benefit of providing accurate predictions across a wide range of parameter values (Gallino et al., 2017).

In order for EOQ to work, it is assumed that the following conditions hold true, as stated by Sebastian and Adetunji (2019): ordering cost, holding cost, and acquisition cost per unit are all constant; orders are supplied all at once; and on average, half of the inventory is available at any one moment. The Economic Order Quantity (EOQ) is located at the point where two prices are equalized. Maximum holding and ordering expenses are associated with the optimal order size.

Moreover, Muchaendepi et al. (2019) found that most SMEs employ the Just-In-Time method of inventory management and are unaware of the other digital systems and techniques. SMBs confront supply chain difficulties due to the JIT methodology, which necessitates continual communication with suppliers and a reduction in the time it takes to obtain goods.

The second goal was to see how enterprises in the Manufacturing Subsector could benefit from better inventory management. According to Chikán et al. (2022), competition is a multi-level and multi-faceted idea that is inextricably linked to Michael Porter's key work. According to Taouab and Issor (2019), competitiveness at the company level is synonymous with business performance from a strategic management perspective. The RBV of the company is a staple in these types of competitiveness articles (Barney 1991; Teece et al. 1997; Ungerman et al. 2018).

Model 2's dependent variable was found to be positively and significantly influenced by inventory management procedures (=0.361, t=5.743, p0.05). This suggests that effective inventory management has a direct and beneficial effect on a company's ability to compete. The findings suggest that small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) might gain a competitive edge through better inventory management. Therefore, better inventory management practices are associated with a competitive advantage for businesses.

Many studies, including those by Panigrahi et al. (2022) and Kurdi et al. (2022), have come to the same conclusion. Panigrahi et al.'s (2022) research is one example that demonstrates how KIMP has an immediate effect on OP, and how this, in turn, has a sizable bearing on a firm's BP. The KIMP has a negligible impact on blood pressure. Consistent with this, the results show that OPs mediate heavily in the relationship between KIMP and BP. Whiles Kurdi et al. (2022) concluded that businesses have a lot of opportunities to use blockchain technology to gain an edge over rivals and grow their market share.

Atnafu and Balda (2018) also demonstrated that better inventory management results in a competitive advantage and superior performance for the organization. However, Chikán et al.'s (2022) research reveals that dynamic production capabilities have a favorable impact on the firm's perceived competitiveness, but conventional production capabilities have no meaningful association with firm-level competitiveness.

When competitors have a hard time replicating an organization's resources, that organization has a competitive advantage, according to Shafeey and Trott (2014). If a resource meets these four criteria, it can be used to gain a competitive edge in the market.

The characteristics for a strategic asset are that it be valuable, scarce, distinctive, and exploitable by the business (Coleman et al., 2013).

Third, we wanted to look at how different approaches to inventory management affect business performance in the Manufacturing Industry. According to Fitria (2018), successful performance involves achieving goals that contribute to the organization as a whole. It's not enough to achieve results; performance also depends on how well they align with the organization's overall mission. According to Milosevic et al. (2018), an organization's performance should be established from within its own operations, taking into account both its own goals and the fundamental and observable context in which it operates.

In addition, model 1's dependent variable was found to be positively and significantly influenced by inventory management procedures (=0.671, t=7.295, p0.05). This suggests that effective inventory management strategies significantly affect business outcomes. Higher levels of inventory management practice were found to be associated with improved organizational performance among SMEs. This suggests that better inventory management practices result in enhanced organizational effectiveness.

Inventory control practices were found to have a significant positive effect and full mediation of the study variables in a similar study by Hashmi et al. (2021), which aimed to determine the mediating role of inventory control practices in proficiency and organizational performance at public hospitals. Muchaendepi et al.'s (2019) research shows that inventory control procedures have a highly substantial positive effect and fully mediate the relationships between the study variables.

According to Simon and Njoku's (2018) research, proper inventory management has a positive effect on many different aspects of an organization's performance, including its

53

ability to produce a sufficient quantity of high-quality goods within budget, deliver those goods on time, and turn a profit.

Inventory management was found to be an influential element in the success of textile manufacturing enterprises in Kenya by Musau et al. (2017). According to the findings, effective inventory management has the potential to positively affect the performance of Textile firms. As a result, the industry has implemented clear mechanisms and invested in advanced material flow systems to ensure a continuous, transparent, and traceable flow of goods throughout the supply chain.

The findings of the study are consistent with the Resource-Based Perspective. Kozlenkova et al. (2013) state that resources are valuable if they help a Manufacturing firm minimize costs or increase income. According to Barney (1999), a resource is valuable if it helps a manufacturing company take advantage of possibilities or protect itself from threats from the outside world. To obtain an edge over the competition, you need more than just access to external chances, as your rivals may already be aware of them or even replicate them (Barney, 1999). When resources are scarce, a small number of companies tend to own monopolies over them, and the resources are imperfectly imitable (Kozlenkova et al., 2013).



54

CHAPTER FIVE

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, CONCLUSION, AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.0 Introduction

This chapter presents the summary of the findings from the questionnaires administered to respondents. The study's primary goal is to examine the relationship between the influence of inventory management practices on firms' competitiveness and organizational performance.

5.1 Summary of Findings

This section presents a summary of findings gathered from the study based on the objective outlined above. In this section, the researcher gives accounts of the outcome of the fieldwork.

5.1.1 Inventory Management Practices

Examining the inventory management strategies used by SMEs in the manufacturing subsector was the study's initial goal. Vendor-managed inventory, economic order quantity, Just-in-Time, A-B-C Model, and demand forecasting showed means above the median value of 3, which shows that the respondents agree that these inventory management strategies are being used, according to the study's findings. This indicates that the SMEs in the manufacturing sub-sector use vendor-managed inventory, economic order quantity, just-in-Time, A-B-C Models, and demand forecasting inventory management techniques.

5.1.2 Inventory Management Practices and Firms' Competitiveness

The study's second goal was to investigate how firms' competitiveness in the manufacturing sub-sector is impacted by inventory management techniques. The research discovered that the dependent variable in Model 2 is positively and significantly influenced by inventory

management strategies. This indicates that inventory management practices have a positive and significant influence on the firms' competitiveness. The findings show that SMEs with greater levels of inventory management practice may have a competitive edge. According to this, the competitive advantage of the company grows when inventory management practices are increased.

5.1.3 Inventory Management Practices and Organizational Performance

Examining how inventory management techniques affect businesses' competitiveness in the Manufacturing Sub-Sector was the study's second goal. The results of the study revealed that Model 2's dependent variable is positively and significantly impacted by inventory management strategies. This suggests that the methods used to manage inventories have a positive and considerable impact on the competitiveness of the firms. According to the findings, SMEs may have an improved competitive advantage if they apply better levels of inventory management. This suggests that improving inventory management practices boosts a firm's competitive edge.

5.2 Conclusion

The goal of the study is to determine how inventory management practices affect organizations' ability to compete and their ability to perform as an organization. SMEs in Tamale Metropolis, which has roughly 386 registered SMEs, are included in the study population. Due to the size of the population, some SMEs are being sampled using the Slovin formula. 190 people made up the study's sample size. A straightforward random sample method was used to analyze the population by obtaining data and examining it.

The main instrument for gathering data for the study is a formal questionnaire. It makes use of a closed-ended questionnaire. In SPSS, the Cronbach's alpha is used to assess the reliability of the research instrument. The study employed factor analysis. A technique called factor analysis is used to break down a large number of variables into a smaller number of elements. This method creates a common score by taking the most common variance possible from all the variables.

The survey found that the SMEs used vendor-managed inventory, economic order quantity, just-in-Time, A-B-C Models, and demand forecasting as their inventory management techniques. It was also shown that inventory management procedures had a favorable and considerable impact on the organizations' competitiveness.

The study concludes that SMEs use inventory management techniques in their business operations, which has improved their competitive advantage and improved organizational performance. The findings of this study generally show that enhanced levels of inventory management practice may have been a result of stronger organizational performance and competitive advantage. Due to the increased pressure to continually outperform its competitors and preserve its competitive position, a firm may be able to implement higher levels of inventory management procedures as a result of its increased competitiveness. On the other hand, increased organizational performance provides a company with additional resources to use a variety of cutting-edge inventory management techniques. This study provides empirical evidence to support the literature on the effects of inventory management strategies.

5.3 Recommendations

Based on the finding of the study the following recommendations are made:

The promotion of SMEs' use of inventory management will help them become more competitive and operate better as an organisation, hence it is advised that policymakers, universities, and NGOs supporting SMEs work to provide the necessary skills and resources. That would increase their contribution to the nation's economic growth. Additionally, it is advised that manufacturing firms in developing nations like Ghana keep inventory management in mind while creating comprehensive and strategic business plans. It is revealed that more than 70% of all production assets are in inventory, therefore adequate attention and focus are required. Manufacturing businesses may dedicate adequate resources to implement and create efficient procedures that will improve operational and overall performance levels if they give inventory management a high priority in their strategic goals. Manufacturing firms in developing nations, such as Ghana, should engage more in supplier development and cooperation if they want to increase their operational performance levels in terms of product quality, operational flexibility, reliability, speed, and production costs.

5.4 Limitations and Recommendations for Future Research

Like every other study, this one has some limitations. The questionnaire used to measure the measuring constructs does not contain any standardized items. But following a careful review of the literature, they have been statistically supported and abstained. The measurement scales utilized in this work should, however, be revalidated using more representative data in subsequent research.

When it came to the broad use of inventory management, only one respondent from a corporation was contacted. The truth is, nobody in a corporation actually oversees the inventory management processes. Future research should try to include a number of responders from each participating company to enhance the research findings. In this study, a relatively limited sample size was used with the structural equation model. Future researchers can therefore use a larger sample size to account for it and produce better results.

SMEs in Tamale's manufacturing sector were also consulted for information. Therefore, it shouldn't be applied to the entire country or the northern region as a whole. This study is

being conducted in the context of SMEs that are manufacturers. Though it's possible that medium- and large-scale manufacturing firms won't be affected by the conclusion. The context of the large- and medium-sized manufacturing industry should be considered by upcoming researchers.



REFERENCES

- Abd Karim, N., Nawawi, A. and Salin, A.S.A.P., 2018. Inventory management effectiveness of a manufacturing company–Malaysian evidence. *International Journal of Law and Management*.
- Agustia, D., Muhammad, N.P.A. and Permatasari, Y., 2020. Earnings management, business strategy, and bankruptcy risk: evidence from Indonesia. *Heliyon*, 6(2), p.e03317.
- Ajayi, E.O., Olutokunbo, T., Obafemi, F. and Araoye, E., 2021. Effective inventory management practice and firm performance: Evidence from Nigerian consumable goods firms. *American International Journal of Business Management*, 4(5), pp.65-76.
- Alhassan, E.A., Hoedoafia, M.A. and Alhassan, E.A., 2016. Entrepreneurial characteristics and business profile of women owned small and medium enterprises (SMEs): A case study of the tamale metropolitan area. *Business Management and Strategy*, 7(1), pp.159-173.
- Alicke, K., Rexhausen, D. and Seyfert, A., 2017. Supply Chain 4.0 in consumer goods. *Mckinsey & Company*, 1(11).
- Atnafu, D. and Balda, A., 2017. Inventory Management Practice in Micro and Small Enterprise: The Case of MSEs' Manufacturing Sub Sector Arsi Zone, Ethiopia. *Industrial Engineering Letters*, ISSN, pp.2224-6096.
- Atnafu, D. and Balda, A., 2018. The impact of inventory management practice on firms' competitiveness and organizational performance: Empirical evidence from micro and small enterprises in Ethiopia. *Cogent Business & Management*, 5(1), p.1503219.
- Atnafu, D. and Balda, A., 2018. The impact of inventory management practice on firms' competitiveness and organizational performance: Empirical evidence from micro and small enterprises in Ethiopia. *Cogent Business & Management*, 5(1), p.1503219.
- Atnafu, D. and Balda, A., 2018. The impact of inventory management practice on firms' competitiveness and organizational performance: Empirical evidence from micro and small enterprises in Ethiopia. Cogent Business & Management, 5(1), p.1503219.
- Badawy, M., Abd El-Aziz, A.A., Idress, A.M., Hefny, H. and Hossam, S., 2016. A survey on exploring key performance indicators. *Future Computing and Informatics Journal*, 1(1-2), pp.47-52.
- Baumann, C., Cherry, M. and Chu, W., 2019. Competitive productivity (CP) at macromeso-micro levels. *Cross Cultural & Strategic Management*.

- Bayon, M. and Aguilera, P., 2021. Managerial perceptions of the strategic relevance of resources and capabilities and its configuration for firm competitiveness: an exploratory study. *Competitiveness Review: An International Business Journal*, 31(3), pp.462-476.
- Bidgoli, H., 2010. The handbook of technology management, supply chain management, marketing and advertising, and global management (Vol. 2). John Wiley & Sons.
- Braja, M. and Gemzik-Salwach, A., 2019. Competitiveness of high-tech sectors in the European Union: A comparative study. *Journal of International Studies*, *12*(2).
- Bushe, B., 2019. The causes and impact of business failure among small to micro and medium enterprises in South Africa. *Africa's Public Service Delivery and Performance Review*, 7(1), pp.1-26.
- Chikán, A., Czakó, E., Kiss-Dobronyi, B. and Losonci, D., 2022. Firm competitiveness: A general model and a manufacturing application. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 243, p.108316.
- Chikán, A., Czakó, E., Kiss-Dobronyi, B. and Losonci, D., 2022. Firm competitiveness: A general model and a manufacturing application. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 243, p.108316.
- Choi, T.M., Wallace, S.W. and Wang, Y., 2018. Big data analytics in operations management. *Production and Operations Management*, 27(10), pp.1868-1883.
- Craighead, C.W., Ketchen Jr, D.J. and Darby, J.L., 2020. Pandemics and supply chain management research: toward a theoretical toolbox. *Decision Sciences*, 51(4), pp.838-866.
- Farida, I. and Setiawan, D., 2022. Business strategies and competitive advantage: the role of performance and innovation. *Journal of Open Innovation: Technology, Market, and Complexity*, 8(3), p.163.
- Fatihudin, D., 2018. How measuring financial performance. *International Journal of Civil Engineering and Technology (IJCIET)*, 9(6), pp.553-557.
- Forson, A., Inkoom, L. and Wilson, K., 2022. Sustainability of the Handicraft Sector in Ghana. In *Africa and Sustainable Global Value Chains* (pp. 217-238). Springer, Cham.
- Gallino, S., Moreno, A. and Stamatopoulos, I., 2017. Channel integration, sales dispersion, and inventory management. *Management Science*, *63*(9), pp.2813-2831.
- Haddouch, H., Beidouri, Z. and El Oumami, M., 2019. Supply chain management: A review of approaches, practices and impact on performance. *International Journal of Supply Chain Management*, 8(6), pp.1-13.

- Hashmi, A., Amirah, N., Yusof, Y. and Zaliha, T., 2021. Mediation of inventory control practices in proficiency and organizational performance: State-funded hospital perspective. *Uncertain Supply Chain Management*, *9*(1), pp.89-98.
- Ibragimov, Z., Vasylieva, T.A. and Liulov, O.V., 2019. *The national economy competitiveness: effect of macroeconomic stability, renewable energy on economic growth* (Doctoral dissertation, Varazdin Development & Entrepreneurship Agency).
- Ismail, S.Z., 2016. *Product-service system inventory control: manufacturing perspectives* (Doctoral dissertation, Loughborough University).
- Issahaku, A., Ganiyu, A.A. and Sophia, A., 2015. Reducing the Rate of Poverty in Tamale Metropolis: The Role of Small and Medium Enterprises. *Int. J. Econ. Commer. Manag. UK*, 3, pp.1-18.
- Ivanova, A., Deliyska, B. and Popova-Terziyska, R., 2021, March. Information modeling of firm competitiveness. In *AIP Conference Proceedings* (Vol. 2333, No. 1, p. 110005). AIP Publishing LLC.
- Ivanova, E. and Kordos, M., 2017. Competitiveness and innovation performance of regions in Slovak Republic.
- John, N., Etim, J. and Ime, T., 2015. Inventory management practices and operational performance of flour milling firms in Lagos, Nigeria. *International Journal of Supply and Operations Management*, 1(4), pp.392-406.
- Jose, R.J.S., Minh, H.T.T., Ullah, S.E. and Sadiq, M., 2021. Enhancing Staff's Work Motivation in Vietnamese Companies. *Turkish Journal of Computer and Mathematics Education (TURCOMAT)*, 12(14), pp.4402-4410.
- Kang, N., Zhao, C., Li, J. and Horst, J.A., 2016. A Hierarchical structure of key performance indicators for operation management and continuous improvement in production systems. *International journal of production research*, 54(21), pp.6333-6350.
- Karadağ, H., 2018. Cash, receivables and inventory management practices in small enterprises: their associations with financial performance and competitiveness. *Small enterprise research*, 25(1), pp.69-89.
- Kaydos, W., 2020. Operational performance measurement: increasing total productivity. CRC press.
- Khan, N.H., Ju, Y. and Hassan, S.T., 2019. Investigating the determinants of human development index in Pakistan: an empirical analysis. *Environmental Science and Pollution Research*, *26*, pp.19294-19304.
- Kurdi, B., Alzoubi, H., Akour, I. and Alshurideh, M., 2022. The effect of blockchain and smart inventory system on supply chain performance: Empirical evidence from retail industry. *Uncertain Supply Chain Management*, 10(4), pp.1111-1116.
- Loree, N. and Aros-Vera, F., 2018. Points of distribution location and inventory management model for Post-Disaster Humanitarian Logistics. *Transportation Research Part E: Logistics and Transportation Review*, 116, pp.1-24.
- Lundberg, I., Johnson, R. and Stewart, B.M., 2021. What is your estimand? Defining the target quantity connects statistical evidence to theory. *American Sociological Review*, 86(3), pp.532-565.
- Mentel, U. and Hajduk-Stelmachowicz, M., 2021. Does standardization have an impact on innovation activity in different countries?. *Problems and Perspectives in Management*, 18(4), p.486.
- Muchaendepi, W., Mbohwa, C., Hamandishe, T. and Kanyepe, J., 2019. Inventory management and performance of SMEs in the manufacturing sector of Harare. *Procedia Manufacturing*, *33*, pp.454-461.
- Muchaendepi, W., Mbohwa, C., Hamandishe, T. and Kanyepe, J., 2019. Inventory management and performance of SMEs in the manufacturing sector of Harare. *Procedia Manufacturing*, *33*, pp.454-461.
- Muchaendepi, W., Mbohwa, C., Hamandishe, T., & Kanyepe, J. (2019). Inventory management and performance of SMEs in the manufacturing sector of Harare. *Procedia Manufacturing*, *33*, 454-461.
- Musau, E.G., Namusonge, G., Makokha, E.N. and Ngeno, J., 2017. The effect of inventory management on organizational performance among textile manufacturing firms in Kenya. *International Journal of Academic Research in Business and Social Sciences*, 7(11), pp.1032-1046.
- Musyoka, N. and Ocharo, K.N., 2018. Real interest rate, inflation, exchange rate, competitiveness and foreign direct investment in Kenya. *American journal of economics*, *3*(1), pp.1-18.
- Mweshi, G.K. and Sakyi, K., 2020. Application of sampling methods for the research design. *Archives of Business Review–Vol*, 8(11).
- Ngo, M.P., 2020. Two-stage Stochastic Production and Transportation Planning Under Carbon Cap-and-trade System (Doctoral dissertation, HEC Montréal).
- Nyabwanga, R.N. and Ojera, P., 2012. Inventory management practices and business performance for small-scale enterprises in Kenya. *KCA Journal of Business Management*, 4(1), pp.11-28.

- Odhiambo, M.O. and Kihara, A.N., 2018. Effect of inventory management practices on supply chain performance of government health facilities in Kisumu county in Kenya. Journal of International Business, Innovation and Strategic Management, 1(6), pp.145-166.
- Oluwaseyi, J.A., Onifade, M.K. and Odeyinka, O.F., 2017. Evaluation of the role of inventory management in logistics chain of an organisation. *LOGI–Scientific Journal on Transport and Logistics*, 8(2), pp.1-11.
- Panigrahi, R.R., Meher, J.R., Shrivastava, A.K., Patel, G. and Jena, L.K., 2022. Operational performance entitling the knowledge of inventory management practices on business performance: a mediational study. *Global Knowledge, Memory and Communication*, (ahead-of-print).
- Peymankar, M., Dehghanian, F., Ghiami, Y. and Abolbashari, M.H., 2018. The effects of contractual agreements on the economic production quantity model with machine breakdown. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 201, pp.203-215.
- Poon, K., 2018. Hot and cool executive functions in adolescence: Development and contributions to important developmental outcomes. *Frontiers in psychology*, 8, p.2311.
- Portes, A. and Guarnizo, L.E., 2019. Tropical capitalists: US-bound immigration and smallenterprise development in the Dominican Republic. In *Migration, remittances, and small business development* (pp. 101-131). Routledge.
- Rahman, M.S., 2020. The advantages and disadvantages of using qualitative and quantitative approaches and methods in language "testing and assessment" research: A literature review.
- Riza, M., Purba, H.H. and Mukhlisin, 2018. The implementation of economic order quantity for reducing inventory cost. *Research in Logistics & Production*, 8(3), pp.207-216.
- Sebastian, I., Ross, J., Beath, C., Mocker, M., Moloney, K. and Fonstad, N., 2017. How big old companies navigate digital transformation. *MIS quarterly executive*, 16(3), pp.197-213.
- Sebatjane, M. and Adetunji, O., 2019. Economic order quantity model for growing items with incremental quantity discounts. *Journal of Industrial Engineering International*, 15, pp.545-556.
- Sigue, M. and Barry, S., 2020. The effects of financial development on the external performance of WAEMU countries: an ARDL approach. *Research Journal of Finance and Accounting*, *11*(12), pp.185-193.

- Simon, P. and Njoku, P.C., 2018. Inventory management and organisational performance (Study of Dansa Food Limited).
- Singjai, K., Winata, L. and Kummer, T.F., 2018. Green initiatives and their competitive advantage for the hotel industry in developing countries. *International Journal of Hospitality Management*, 75, pp.131-143.
- Stojanović, M. and Regodić, D., 2017. The significance of the integrated multicriteria ABC-XYZ method for the inventory management process. Acta Polytechnica Hungarica, 14(5), pp.29-48.
- Sutcher, L., Darling-Hammond, L. and Carver-Thomas, D., 2019. Understanding teacher shortages: An analysis of teacher supply and demand in the United States. *Education policy analysis archives*, 27(35).
- Tao, F., Cheng, J., Qi, Q., Zhang, M., Zhang, H. and Sui, F., 2018. Digital twin-driven product design, manufacturing and service with big data. *The International Journal* of Advanced Manufacturing Technology, 94, pp.3563-3576.
- Taouab, O. and Issor, Z., 2019. Firm performance: Definition and measurement models. *European Scientific Journal*, 15(1), pp.93-106.
- Ungerman, O., Dedkova, J. and Gurinova, K., 2018. The impact of marketing innovation on the competitiveness of enterprises in the context of industry 4.0. *Journal of competitiveness*, 10(2), p.132.
- Wanyonyi, N.N., 2017. *Inventory management practices and service delivery of major* supermarkets in Kenya (Doctoral dissertation, University of Nairobi).
- Willems, K., Smolders, A., Brengman, M., Luyten, K. and Schöning, J., 2017. The pathto-purchase is paved with digital opportunities: An inventory of shopper-oriented retail technologies. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 124, pp.228-242.



APPENDIX A: QUESTIONNAIRES

KWAME NKRUMAH UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY BUSINESS SCHOOL

Introduction: Dear Respondent, as part of my MSc. research at the Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology, I am undertaking a study to assess the **Influence of Inventory Management Practice on Firms' Competitiveness and Organizational Performance**. I would be grateful for your participation in the completion of this questionnaire. Please answer as frankly as possible. All information obtained in this survey will be used strictly for academic purposes. Please rate the academic performance of your school in the last three years in each of the following aspects.

Section	n A: Characteris	tics
1.	What is the legal status of your con Sole Proprietorship Limited Company Joint Stock Company	npany? [] [] []
2.	How long has your company been	operating?
	Below 10 years	[]
	10 - 19 years	U .
	20 and 39	0
	Above 30 years	11
		REAT
3.	How many people are employed by	y your firm
	Micro (1- 5 employees)	
	Small (6 – 29 employees)	[]
	Medium (30 – 99 employee	s) []
	Large (100+ employees)	11
4.	Which title best describes your wor	k position and responsibilities?
-	Owner	
1-	General Manager	1 3
	Sales/Finance Manager	
	Other	
	AD	200
5.	What is your highest level of educa	tion?
	No high-s <mark>cho</mark> ol Diploma	NE NO
	High-School Diploma	
	University Graduate	[]
	Masters/PhD Graduate	[]
6	What is your gender?	
0.	Male	[]
	Female	[]
	i onnaio	
		66

Section B

INVENTORY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

Please indicate the extent to which you concur with the following statements concerning the extent to which your firm adopts in your operations, using a Likert scale of 1 - 5 (Very Great Extent -5, Great Extent -4, Moderate Extent -3, less extent -2 and No Extent-1).

S/N	Statement	1	2	3	4	5
	Vendor Managed Inventory					
1	This firm provides vendors with all inventory information necessary for replenishment					
2	This firm vendor uses this information to monitor inventory or					
	place new orders in a continuous manner					
3	Our vendor is given access to the firm inventory and demand information					
4	The vendor has the authority and the obligation to replenish the					
	purchaser's inventory according to collectively agreed inventory					
	concepts and targets					
	Economic Order Quantity					
1	The firm knows with certainty the replenishment period of its					
	items					
2	The stocks or sales made by a firm remain unchanged					
	throughout the period				1	
3	When stocks reach zero level, an order for replenishment is		-		1	
	placed without further delay	2	-			
	Just-in-Time					
1	The firm employs a zero-stock level of its inventory		1			
2	The ownership of the inventory does not belong to this firm	5				
3	There is a shared product design with suppliers and clients	$\langle \rangle$				
4	There exists preventive protection in this firm					
	A-B-C Model					
1	The management has separated items with high value from those of lesser value		1			
2	There is a dedicated supervisor who manages the high-value	/				
	products					
3	Their low-value products are less supervised by the firm	/	5	51		
	management	ſ.,	\geq			
	20	5	1	·		
	Demand Forecasting					
1	Our firm adjusts forecasts for seasonality	-				
2	Our firm looks out for trends in the historical demand data and					
	adjusts inventory forecasts accordingly to trends					
3	Our firm inputs any sales and marketing insights into the					
	inventory forecasts to make them as accurate as possible.					
4	Our firm adjusts inventory forecasting intervals					

Section C.

FIRMS' COMPETITIVENESS

What is your level of agreement with the following statement in relation to your **Firms' Competitiveness**? Use a scale of 1-5 where 1= **Never**, 2= **Rarely**, 3=**Sometimes**, 4=**Very Often**, 5= **Always**.

S/N	Statement	1	2	3	4	5
	Delivery					
1	Ability to rapidly change production volumes.					
2	Manufacture a broad product mix within the same facilities.					
3	Ability to rapidly modify methods for materials.					
4	Ability to rapidly modify methods for components.					
5	Being able to provide fast-response deliveries from order to					
	end customer.					
	Price					
	Ensure that the price of a product is in line with the market					
1	price					
2	Attach importance to the distinctiveness of the company brand in its pricing.					
3	Price some products according to the customer's perception of value.					
4	Ensure that the price of a product is in line with the market price		-	1		-
5	Offering lower-priced products.	1	1		>	
	4211/3	-				
	Quality					
1	Conformance quality (i.e., the degree to which a product's operating characteristics meet established standards)	2	5	ġ.		
2	Product durability (i.e., the amount of time or use before the product breaks down and replacement is preferred to continued repair).))		
3	Product reliability (i.e., the probability of a product malfunctioning or failing within a specified time period).	1	/	<u></u>		
4	Performance quality (i.e., a product's primary operating characteristics).			111	HI.	
	W J SANE NO	20	4.	5/		

Section D.

Firm Performance

Please indicate your level of agreement with the following statements by ticking the corresponding number on the Likert Scale. Where 1= **Strongly Disagree** 2= **Disagree** 3= **Neutral,** 4= **Agree** and 5=**Strongly Agree.**

IZNILICT

	K NH P	-				
S/N	Statement	1	2	3	4	5
	Financial Performance					
1	our company is able to make cost reduction efforts					
2	High return on capital					
3	Net profits continue to increase					
4	our company has good liquidity (cash)					
5	Assets have a good rate of return	0				
6	Sales increase					
		1				
	Operational Performance					
1	The ability to handle varied customer/market needs	1				1
2	Consistency in meeting the needs of customers		0		1	
3	The nature of product/service support to customers		ľ	N		5
4	The extent of variety in products/services offered to	1	×	1	2	
	customers	7	X	7	1	
5	our company is able to utilize our resources (e.g.	X		~		
	human skills, time)	2		\sim		
6	there is flexibility in production/service delivery			1	0	
	processes					

